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DESCRIBI THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (tF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Sheridan Plaza is a hotel or apartment hotel, of concrete eonstruction thirough-—
out, faccd with brick and terra cotta, occupving a recltanpular site at the northoast
corner of Wilson Avenuce and Sheridan Road, fronting about 225 by 130 feet. It centains
about 190,000 square leet exclusive of the basement. The southeast corner of the site
is vacant. The rest of the site is covered by a two-story base containing lobby, desk,
lounges, dining areas, shops and stores and facilities. Above this base are ten floors
of rooms and suites, about 415 units in all, which form a reverse letter V in plan:
an east-west section along the rear or alley edpe of the site, and two north-south
sections, one along the west or Sheridan Read edge and ong near the middle of the site.
A rendering in the Economist of Sept. 24, 1919, shows a third north-south wing at the
east, which would have completed the F te an E, but the six—flat building wiich
occupled the southeast corner of the site was not razed until much later and this
wing was never bu1]t..

The first floor street fronts contain shop and restauvrant spaces. The second floor
fronts express the lounpge and dining areas of the hotel. All this basc is richly
clothed in monochromatic white terra cotta, which is especially elaborate at the main
cntrance on Sheridan Road {lanked hy canopied niches and topped by a large shield held
by chimeras. The two-story scctions (lobby and banquet roow) have barrel-vanlted
cellings expressed in cylindrical roofs. AL tie Wilson Avenue fronts large Festooued
urns are spaced along this roof line. '

Face brick laid in ccoumon bond forms the primary facing of the upper elevatlons
(except the alley wall whicir is common brick). Terra colta panels and ornasents are
used on these eleVations to develop a secondary cffect of slender towers at ihe north-
west end of the site and at the south ends of the two north-south wings., A strong
verbtical emphasls is created using continuous terra cotta moldings on these "towcrs®
whilc the walls between are left almost undecorated.. The corners of these "towers"
are marvked at the top by winged gargovles and at the bottom by large cartouches, The
middle scction of the west elevation is topped by another row of urns. AU Lhe eleventh
floor, windows in the strecet clevations originally had little balustrades to give a

!
suggestiion of balconies.

The terra cotta details are ecleclic and draw [reely from many diflferenl periods
and styles, as is typical of many ¢f the claborate terra cotta facades of this period
in Chicago.

Scveral store frents have been changed. Mosi of the baleonies have been removed,
and the roof line of the "towers" originally had a row of slender pinnacles or rockots
which have been taken down.. There 1s some other terra cotta damage but Lhe exicrior is
generally in good condition and unaltered except for the shop [ronts.

The meost important and impressive interior feature is the lebby, a barvel-vaulted
space ahout 34 by 58 Feet and over two stories hiph, with rich plaster decorat ion. At
fts south end the lobby Flows up to a second-{loor lTovupe by wavy ol o formal decarat ive
statreay with a fountain.  Access from Lhe main (Sheridan) entrance s under anoiier
docorat tve sitailr leadiog te a lounpe along the west Drondl. Twer lirpe Jounee or dining
arevas lie chst of the lobby on the sccond floor.  The rest of Lhe base s shops, ol fices
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and support areas. Some of the ornamental plaster in the lobby is bLadly damaged.
A1l Lhe interiors show considerable deterioration due to deferred maintenance, Lire
damage in 1974, aud five years of vacancy.
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STATEMINT OF SIGNIFICANCE

2%n Sheridan Plaza was the first big building in Uptown. It was vlanned in 1919,

-

begun in 1920 2nd opewed in 1921,

Chicapo was built, exceplt for its central arca, as a nrairie city of detached houses
and two or Lhree story apartment buildings. But as it grew larger and commuting and
shopping patterns evolved, neighborhood entertainment and shopping centers bepan fo
sprout where sireetcar and rapid-tfransit lincs intersected or terminated. In the real
cstate boom of the 1920s several of these centers underwent explosive growth, none move
than the arca known as Uptown. While most outlying ceuters consisted of a single major
crossing or a linear strip, Uptown expanded along the edpges of an irregular quadrilateral,
formed by Wilson Avenue, Sireridan Road, Lawrence Avenue, and DNreadway. In Lhis core area,
covering less than one tenth of a square mile, there avose a unigquc combination of
restaurante, theaters, ballrooms and night cluhs, hotels and apartment botels, shiops,
stores and offices. This included two 12-story hotels and two others of 10 aund &
stories; a 17 story hank aud otfice building, an 8 story office building, the world
famous Aragon Ballroom, and several moticon plcture theaters culminating in the Uptown
Theater whichehen built (1925) was the world's largest. '

In 1921, when Lhe hotel opencd, land at the Sheridun-Wilson comer was worth 52500
per front foot. By 1925 it had reached $6000 per front foot, the same as the nearby
Wilson-Broadway. corner. These were the two mosl valuable corners on the Novth side
(i.e. north of Oak Street) and only the Englewoed interscction of 63rd and Hulsted was
higher valued outside the central eity.

Wilson Avenue's success as an entertainment center predates world War I. Buf of
all the tall buildinps, the Sheridan Plaza was the first. An aerial photo of thie carly
twentics chows it looming over a neighborhood of three-steory buildings. All the other
high-rise hotcls, apartments and oflice buildings in Uptown camc later, most of them
after 1925 when the boom accelerated. '

The hotel was promoted on the hasis of ils convenience, facilities and staff.
Express buses ran by on both strects; both elevated and Milwaukee Road Lrains stopped
two blocks away; the famous Clarendon Beach was two blocks east. The manager wus brought
from Lhe Greenbrier at White Sulphur Springs and the steward, chefs and maitre d'hotel
wore rocruited from Lhe Grand and the Sacher in Vienna, the Palace in San Franclusco, anel
the Astor in Rew York amony uviher famous places.

Yor decades the hotel was a Teading venue For weddings, public and priviate donees,
d other social cvenls. 1t was the scasonal home of Che Chicopo Cubs o and of all tiw

basobadl teams visiting the Cubs.
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Tn one other important respect this hotel is a landmark in the commcrcial develop-
ment of Uptown. The three partners organized the Up-Town (sic) Businoss and Devoelopment
Association, which evolved into the Uptown Chamber .of Commerce, 50111l the leading
coumercial association in the area.

Architecture is more than a fine art; it is alsc a business. Walter W. Ahlechlager
was not only the designer of this 1Z2-story, 400~plus-room hellwether of the lptown
boom: he was also co-owner and co-developer. Born in Chicago in 1887, locally schooled,
he began as a draftsman in his father's small architectural otfice in 1914. His father
dicd soon after. Even before 1920 Walter Ahlschlager had bullt several sizable
buildings, including theaters and hotels, and was dealing in land for redevelopment.

He was a partner with real-estate operators Louis H. Stafford and W. €. D, Trankle
in the land asscmbly for the Sheridan Plaza, and became the vice president of the
Sheridan Plaza Hotel Corporatioun when it incorporated. In other cases he was to
develop on his own.

Retween 1918 and 1926, he built four of Chicago's largest mation-plcture houses:
the Pantheon on=Sheridan near Wilson, the south-side Stratford, the west-gide Senate,
and his masterpicce, the Belmont. In roughly the same period he also huiliil several
holels and apariment towers in oultlying neighborhoods: the Parkway and Webster on the
mid-north side, the Sovereign in Ropers Park, the Jackson Towers in Hyde Park, and
the [amous Graemere ab Carfield Tark. In all these buildings, as in the Sheyidan rlaza,
his design work reveals considorable flair for drama and richness, even opulence. '

Perhaps his most famous Chicago building is the 45-story Medinah Club on Michigan
Avenue (now the Radisson ltotel), a distinguished example of the Lower type and a
fitting companion to the Tribune Tower. Rut Ahlschlager was not bounded by the Chlcago
city limits. This architect-entrepreneur wenl on to build a national practice. His
son states that at one time Ahlschlager had the third largest practice in Chicago,
after the large and fomous [irms of Graham Anderson Frobst & White and Holabird & Root,

Bricfly, among otber projects, he built {and generally was a part owner or dovelope)
of} the Roxy in New York, the world's largest motiou picture theater (6076 aents);
the Carew Tower — Wetherland Plaza complex in Cincinmati (a2 514 million project,
including Ohio's then tallesl building); a $9%9-million downlown conter in Wichita;
and, among many projects in Dallas, a skyscraper Mercantile National Bank which he
wins able to complete in 1941-1943 deapite the extraordinary difficulties of wartime
consLruct ion,when materiale bought and paid for were often Laken Lack for privrity use.
Allschlager moved to Dallas in 1940 and lived theve until hils death in 1965,
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His theatrical and promotional flair is amply demonstrated by five plates in the
American Architect of April 20, 1926, showing the reception roon of his architcctural
office. This startling voom appears Lo have a 25-foot celling and a walk-in
fireplace, and indeed looks rather lilke the lobby of a good size movie housc.

Walter “hilsechlager dis an ocutstanding example of the architect-developer, with
a national practice, operating in real estate with great boldness and great success,
Uptown Chicape is a unigue configuration of high-density commercial and residential
development (n an outlying seclion of an American city. The Sheridan Plaza, onc of
Ahlschlager's first big ventures, was the beginning of the constructiou boom ol Lhe
twenties in Uptown and sywbolizes the optimism, the energics and the lifestyle of
Uptown, Chicago and America. a
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